
CITY OF GOODLAND
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 13TH, 2023 AT 6:00P.M.
CITY HALL, 204 W. 11th ST., GOODLAND, KS

1. Call to Order
a. Roll Call

2. Public Comment

3. Site Plan Review 1103 Main St.

4. Site Plan Review 821 W 19th St.

5. Review Current Comprehensive Plan Update October 2000 for the City of
Goodland – Chapters 1 thru 3
With new commissioner on board and as requested by Planning Commissioners at last
meeting.

6. Reports
A. Planning Commissioners
B. Staff

7. Minutes
a. January 14, 2023 Minutes

8. Adjournment



City of Goodland
204 W. 11th Street

Goodland, KS 67735

MEMORANDUM

TO: Planning Commissioners
FROM: Kent Brown, City Manager

Jeff Dinkel, Building Official
DATE: February 13, 2023
SUBJECT: Agenda Report

Agenda Items

Discussion on Site Plans. Sec. 19-1302. – Applicability - The Building Official shall require that
all applications for building permits for new buildings or expansion of any existing buildings in
multifamily, commercial and industrial zoning districts be subject to Site Plan Review in
accordance with these regulations.

3.   Site Plan Review 1103 Main St.

Building Official Dinkel has received a completed plan set as well as a completed site plan
review form.  The submitted site plan is now presented for formal approval.

Sections 19-456, 19-1302 & 19-1303 and Article 12 of the Procedures manual are included
here:

====================================================

Sec. 19-456. - "C-2" Central business district.

11.Site Plan Review: Development in the "C-2" District shall be subject to site plan review
requirements, procedures and design guidelines.

Sec. 19-1302. - Applicability.

The Building Official shall require that all applications for building permits for developments in
the multifamily, commercial and industrial zoning districts be subject to Site Plan Review in
accordance with these regulations, . . .  Site Plan Reviews shall be performed by the Building
Official, and submitted to the Planning Commission for approval if in conjunction with a public
hearing.



Sec. 19-1303. - Site plan review.

The Planning Commission shall perform their review at the next regularly scheduled meeting of
the Planning Commission for which the item may be scheduled and shall adjourn and
reconvene as is determined necessary.

Article 12 of the City of Goodland Procedures Manual

Review of the site plan shall be performed by the Building Official or the city’s planning
consultant and submitted to the Planning Commission for approval.  The Planning Commission
shall perform their review of the site plan and staff findings at the next regularly scheduled
meeting of the Planning Commission for which the item may be scheduled and shall adjourn
and reconvene as is determined necessary.

================================================================

The building official has completed the site plan review with his assessment and included in the
agenda packet.  There are no changes to the outside elevation of the building on either the east
or west sides. Staff will request the planning commission to make a motion to APPROVE or
DENY the site plan form as submitted and reviewed by the Building Official.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: “I move that we approve the site plan review for 1103 Main St.
completed by the Building Official.”

==================================================================

4. Site Plan Review 821 W 19th St.

Building Official Dinkel has received a completed plan set as well as a completed site plan
review form.  The submitted site plan is now presented for formal approval.

Sections 19-456, 19-1302 & 19-1303 and Article 12 of the Procedures manual are included here:

====================================================

Sec. 19-455. - "C-1" General business district.

11.  Site Plan Review: Development in the "C-1" District shall be subject to site plan review
requirements and procedures.

Sec. 19-1302. - Applicability.

The Building Official shall require that all applications for building permits for developments in
the multifamily, commercial and industrial zoning districts be subject to Site Plan Review in
accordance with these regulations, and for redevelopment in the following circumstances: if
the redevelopment enlarges the size of the original structure by more than 1,500 square feet.
Developments shall be encouraged to implement the objectives of the Future Land Use Plan to
foster compatibility among land uses in the City of Goodland. Site Plan Reviews shall be



performed by the Building Official, and submitted to the Planning Commission for approval if in
conjunction with a public hearing.

Sec. 19-1303. - Site plan review.

The Planning Commission shall perform their review at the next regularly scheduled meeting of
the Planning Commission for which the item may be scheduled and shall adjourn and
reconvene as is determined necessary.

The applicant may appeal a site plan review determination to the City Commission for approval
in the event that an applicant alleges that there is an error in any order, requirement, decision
or determination made by the Building Official or the Planning Commission in the enforcement
of Site Plan Review. The request for review by the City Commission shall be accompanied by a
complete description of the error(s) alleged.

Article 12 of the City of Goodland Procedures Manual

Review of the site plan shall be performed by the Building Official or the city’s planning
consultant and submitted to the Planning Commission for approval.  The Planning Commission
shall perform their review of the site plan and staff findings at the next regularly scheduled
meeting of the Planning Commission for which the item may be scheduled and shall adjourn
and reconvene as is determined necessary.

================================================================

The building official has completed the site plan review with his assessment and included in
the agenda packet.  Staff will request the planning commission to make a motion to APPROVE
or DENY the site plan form as submitted and reviewed by the Building Official.

RECOMMENDED MOTION: “I move that we approve the site plan review for 821 W. 19th St.
completed by the Building Official.”

=================================================================

Discussion

5. Review Current Comprehensive Plan Update October 2000 for the City of Goodland –
Chapters 1 thru 3

Planning Commissioner McKenzie requested a review of this item.

7.  Reports:
A. Planning Commissioners

The Chair will ask each Planning Commissioner for their comments or questions for
staff on any other topic not on the agenda at this time.

B.   Staff – Upcoming items



8.  Minutes:
A. 1-10-2023 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
Staff recommends approval of the Meeting Minutes with any changes requested by the
commission.
RECOMMENDED MOTION: I move that we approve the planning commission meeting
minutes of January 10, 2023.



City of Goodland Planning Commission Minutes

1/10/2023

1. CALL TO ORDER:

The January 10, 2023 meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order at 6:00 p.m.
Planning commissioners in attendance: Grady Bonsall, Dennis Snethen and Matt McKenzie.
Wallace Hansen was absent. Staff in attendance: Kent Brown, City Manager and Jeff Dinkel,
Building Official.  Breanne and Curtis Penrod were in attendance to present the Goodland Tech
site plan.

2. Public Comment

There was no public comment

3.   Discussion on Site Plans. Sec. 19-1302. – Applicability - The Building Official shall
require that all applications for building permits for new buildings or expansion of any existing
buildings in multifamily, commercial and industrial zoning districts be subject to Site Plan
Review in accordance with these regulations.

a. Goodland Tech – 1205 Main St. – redesign building – updated plans.

Breanne presented the plans of the existing building that were included in the agenda packet.  In
addition, she reviewed the building plans that were submitted.  Breanne commented on the
parking study done for the application.  She stated that there 103 spaces around the building
within one block in every direction.  She said there were 62 offices in the proposed building.
Chairman McKenzie stated he was surprised at the number of spaces located within that
proximity.  Commissioner Snethen stated he owns the lot on 12th Street just 1 block east of the
property under consideration.

Breanne stated that the permit set included the facades.   Chairman McKenzie reviewed the east
and west facades and entrances as part of the permit set.  Breanne reviewed the required sheet for
egress and the windows that were 5 foot from the property line.  Breanne also reviewed the ADA
requirements.  Breanne then moved on to the rest of the permit set documents including
demolition, offices, roofing, utilities and drainage.   Private and public entrances were identified
on the back (or east) elevation.   McKenzie asked if there would be additional traffic in the alley.
Curtis stated that there would be two parking spaces off of the alley; but, not a huge increase of
traffic in the alley.

City Manager Brown reviewed the site plan review completed by Building Official Dinkel and
also what is the request for action by the Planning Commission.   City Manager Brown reminded
the Planning Commission of Section 19-1306 of the Municipal Code.



Sec. 19-1306. - Standard of review.

The recommendations of the Building Official shall be based on the following standards:

A.The extent to which the proposal conforms to the previous sections of these regulations.

Yes

B.The extent to which the development would be compatible with the surrounding area and the
Development Guidelines of this Article.

Yes – obviously using a current building and adding to it.

C.The extent to which the proposal conforms to the provisions of the City's Subdivision
Regulations.

Yes – no concerns.

D.The extent to which the proposal conforms to customary engineering standards used in the
City.

Yes

E.The extent to which the location of streets, paths, walkways, and driveways are located so as to
enhance safety and minimize any adverse traffic impact on the surrounding area.

Yes – keeping the wide sidewalk in front.  Access on two different sides.

Building Official Dinkel agreed that they met these standards.

Sec. 19-1307. - Development guidelines, commercial and industrial districts.

Building Official Dinkel reviewed the submission for the guidelines including form and
proportion of buildings, rhythm of structural mass to voids, large buildings, architectural design
create visual design (have done), adding glass, careful consideration of materials, substantial
amounts of masonry (have done), corrugated metal complemented with other types.   The plans
submitted meet these criteria for Building Offical Dinkel.

City Manager Brown then reviewed the role of the planning commission for this site plan review.
Section 19-1302 Site Plan Reviews shall be performed by the Building Official, and submitted to
the Planning Commission for approval if in conjunction with a public hearing.  City Manager
Brown stated that the Planning Commission should have a motion to approve if they agree with
the building official’s review of the site plan.

Chairman McKenzie reviewed the building official’s review and the no’s that were included in
his review.  Commissioner Bonsall confirmed the access and exits for fire department.

Chairman McKenzie made a motion to approve the site plan review completed by Building
Official Dinkel, seconded by Commissioner Snethen.  Motion carried unanimously.



City Manager Brown asked what is the estimated time to complete construction.  Curtis stated
that phasing of the plan needed to be completed; but, they were looking at approximately one
year.

4. Review Current Comprehensive Plan Update October 2000 for the City of Goodland –
Chapters 1 thru 3

Chairman McKenzie stated items 4 and 5 were on the agenda for the new Commission member
who was not in attendance and recommended to table the items.

5. Review Zoning Ordinance – Article 4 District Regulations and Zoning Map

Chairman McKenzie stated items 4 and 5 were on the agenda for the new Commission member
who was not in attendance and recommended to table the items.

6. Reports

A. Planning Commissioners

B. Staff

Building Official Dinkel stated that a building would be built on 19th St. behind the Asam Hotel.
In addition, the building addition at the college.   Finally, Dinkel mentioned the building codes
that were being reviewed by the Builder’s Board.

7. Minutes

a. December 20, 2022 Minutes

Commissioner Bonsall moved, seconded by Commissioner Snethen, to approve the minutes as
presented.  Motion carried unanimously.

8. Adjournment

Commissioner Bonsall motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Snethen.  Motion
passed unanimously.  The meeting was adjourned at 6:32 p.m.



DNUP

M
A

IN
 A

V
E

N
U

E

A
L

L
E

Y

ELEVENTH STREET

8:25 PM

5:40 AM

8:25 PM

June 22

5:40 AM

3:40 PM

W

S

E

N

5:36 PM

8:22 AM

5:36 PM

December 228:22 AM

3:37 PM

W

S

E

N

1202 main aveue

goodland, kansas 67735

t.  970.393.0784

e. studio@goodland.tech1103 MAIN AVE, GOODLAND, KANSAS

GOODLAND TECH | MASTER CARD SITE PLAN

SITE PLAN REVIEW  |  FEBRUARY 06, 2023
SD0 0' 8' 16' 32'

SOLAR STUDY - SUMMER

SOLAR STUDY - WINTER



2

SD4

1

SD4 RECEPTION

1
4
'-
8
"

M
A

IN
 A

V
E

N
U

E

A
L

L
E

Y

E
Q

E
Q

138'-4 5/8"

4
8
'-
2
"

M
A

IN
 A

V
E

N
U

E

A
L

L
E

Y

1202 main aveue

goodland, kansas 67735

t.  970.393.0784

e. studio@goodland.tech1103 MAIN AVE, GOODLAND, KANSAS

GOODLAND TECH | MASTER CARD FLOOR PLANS

SITE PLAN REVIEW  |  FEBRUARY 06, 2023
SD1

1/8" = 1'-0"
2

Proposed Floor Plan

0' 4' 8' 16'

1/8" = 1'-0"
1

Existing & Demo Floor Plan

AREA       

MAIN LEVEL EXISTING BUILDING   6,500 SF 

MAXIMUM OCCUPANCY CALC 49

FIXED WORKSTATIONS       

EXECUTIVE FIXED WORKSTATIONS   3

FIXED  WORKSTATIONS 42  

TOTAL FIXED WORKSTATION SEATS 45

PHONE BOOTHS   5  

CONFERENCE ROOMS       

LARGE CONFERENCE ROOM 1

MEDIUM CONFERENCE ROOM 1

BREAKOUT / FLEX SPACE 1   

TOTAL CONFERENCE ROOMS 3



1202 main aveue

goodland, kansas 67735

t.  970.393.0784

e. studio@goodland.tech1103 MAIN AVE, GOODLAND, KANSAS

GOODLAND TECH | MASTER CARD 3D AXON

SITE PLAN REVIEW  |  FEBRUARY 06, 2023
SD2 0' 2'4" 5'8" 10'8"



1202 main aveue
goodland, kansas 67735
t.  970.393.0784
e. studio@goodland.tech1103 MAIN AVE, GOODLAND, KANSAS

GOODLAND TECH | MASTER CARD
SITE PLAN REVIEW  |  FEBRUARY 06, 2023SD3

QUICKFLEX 
WALLS® 

PRIVATE
OFFICES
Create a dedicated office or focus space for anyone who 
needs some quiet time. Office sizes can even scale to 
accommodate small teams and include lockable doors for 
added privacy.

MEETING
SPACES
Combine walls, meeting tables, or soft seating to create 
inviting spaces where people can gather to collaborate or 
simply escape and recharge. 



1202 main aveue

goodland, kansas 67735

t.  970.393.0784

e. studio@goodland.tech1103 MAIN AVE, GOODLAND, KANSAS

GOODLAND TECH | MASTER CARD ELEVATIONS

SITE PLAN REVIEW  |  FEBRUARY 06, 2023
SD4

1/4" = 1'-0"

East Elevation (No Change)

0' 4' 8' 16'

1/4" = 1'-0"

West Elevation (No Change)






















































































































































